1982

Earl Michaelson and Mabel Michaelson v. Lyman Larson and Katie Larson : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

QUESTION PRESENTED

May the court order a survey in a partition action when the description used in dividing the real property is inaccurate and uncertain and does not use ordinary landmarks?

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellants and Respondents are joint tenants and owners of certain real property in Sanpete County. Respondents instituted a partition action to divide said real property. The court appointed referees and a recommendation was submitted. Both the referees' recommendation and the court order use "legal" descriptions in describing the portion awarded to each party. A survey was never taken at either the request of the referees or the court. The descriptions used were arrived at by calculation rather than by survey. Appellants objected to said order on the grounds that the descriptions were not accurate and would not give marketable title to the parties involved. It is from the adverse judgment regarding that objection that is the basis of this appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE RECORD COMPELS THAT THE COURT REVIEW AND DISTURB THE JUDGMENT OF THE DISTRICT COURT.

Before the court will disturb the judgment of a District Court in a Partition action there must be a compelling reason to do so, Arthur v. Chournos, 574 P.2d 723 (Ut.). This requirement has been met in this case in that the order of the District Court if left unchanged would result in unmarketable title for both parties and in uncertainty as to the boundries of their respective properties. In order to avoid these consequences a survey must be taken of the properties to provide an accurate legal description. This is discussed more completely below.

POINT II

IT IS NECESSARY THAT THE PROPERTY INVOLVED IN THIS CASE BE SURVEYED IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A FAIR AN EQUITABLE PARTITION.

Under Utah Statute, U.C.A. 78-39-13 (1953 as amended) a survey may be ordered by the court but is not necessary. As interpreted by Utah case law a survey is not necessary when the description incorporates ordinary and proper landmarks, Roper v. Bartholomew, 30 U.2d 386, 518 P.2d 683 (1974). In this case the descriptions used are legal descriptions and yet no survey was taken in order to arrive at these descriptions, but rather they were arrived at by calculation and do not accurately reflect the portions intended to be conveyed. They are vague and leave uncertainty as to exact location of the boundaries. They do not employ any ordinary landmarks upon which the parties may rely to determine their boundaries. The reasoning behind not requiring surveys in all partition actions is that by use of other means such as landmarks an accurate division may be achieved; however, in this case the purpose of the statute has been frustrated by the use of inaccurate legal description. 68 Corpus Juris Secundum supports this position "A survey of real estate to be partitioned will not ordinarily be ordered unless shown to be necessary; but, if the description of the land is loose or uncertain, the court may order a survey to be made."

CONCLUSION

The judgment of the District Court if left unchanged will result in unmarketable title, uncertainty as to boundaries, and the possibility of inequities in the partition to both parties. For these reasons it is respectfully requested that the judgment of District Court be remanded and a survey ordered.