1982

## Earl Michaelson and Mabel Michaelson v. Lyman Larson and Katie Larson : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

### QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether an order of partition may be entered without a survey and if so entered, is there created unmarketable title?

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellants and Respondents are joint tenants and owners of a parcel of real property in Sanpete County, State of Utah, containing 91.42 acres marked as description no. 36 on the attached Exhibit "A". Appellants are the separate owners of real property to the east and south of the above referred to 91.42 acres; marked as description's no. 38 and 39 on attached Exhibit "A". Respondents are the separate owners of real property to the north and east of said 91.42 acres, marked as description no. 40 on attached Exhibit "A".

The trial court appointed referees for a recommendation for partition or sale. The referees recommended that the 91.42 acres be partitioned into two parcels each containing 45.71 acres; one to the north, and one to the south. They recommended that the north 45.71 acre parcel be awarded to Respondents, and the south 45.71 acre parcel be awarded to Appellants.

They further recommended that Appellants have an easement

for ingress and egress across Respondent's property. Said easement being over the northern part of Respondent's property marked Exhibit "A" attached and marked as description no. 30.

A survey was never taken and the 45.71 acre parcels were platted from the jointly owned 91.42 acre parcel as recorded in the office of the Sanpete County Recorder.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I

#### THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT ERROR BY ORDERING A PARTITION WITHOUT A SURVEY.

Pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, Section 78-39-13, (1953 as amended), a survey in a partition action is not mandatory, but discretionary with the referees and the court.

Application of Utah Code Annotated, Section 78-39-13, (1953 as amended) has been given supporting the statute making a survey discretionary. Roper -vs- Bartholomew, 30 U.2d 386, 518 P.2d 683 (1974).

The failure to have the partitioned property surveyed which is only discretionary by statute, certainly does not advance a compelling reason, justifying setting aside the district court's judgment. Aurthur -vs- Chournos, 574 P.2d

723, (Utah 1978).

POINT II

THE PARTITION ORDER DOES NOT CREATE UN-  
MARKETABLE TITLE.

Prior to the partition, the parties owed jointly 91.42 acres, marked as description no. 36 on the attached Exhibit "A". Respondents were awarded the northern 45.71 acres because it was close to property Respondents' owned separately. The Appellants were awarded the southern 45.71 acre parcel because it was located close to property which Appellants separately owned.

The partition was made by mathematical calculations. Obviously, measurements can be taken to determine the boundaries of the above referred to property. Appellants attempt to advance the theory that the property is unmarketable because the boundaries cannot be plainly and visibly observed, of course, that simply is not true.

Property which has been partitioned is not any less marketable than it was when it was contained in a single parcel of 91.42 acres.

The district court has recorded its order in the Sanpete

County Recorder's Office, awarding to each party 45.71 acres, one-half of the original 91.42 acres. The partition in no way has effected the marketability of the property. There is no cloud on the property.

CONCLUSION

The judgment of the district court should be left intact and by so doing there will not result any unmarketability of title. The partition was fair and equitable given the separate ownership of property by the parties.

For these reasons it is respectfully requested that the judgment of the District Court in and for Sanpete County, State of Utah, be affirmed.